

ILLINOIS CREDIT UNION LEAGUE

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MODEL CHAPTER BYLAWS

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To: Delegates, Chapters of the Illinois Credit Union League

AN AMENDMENT TO THE MODEL CHAPTER BYLAWS OF THE ILLINOIS CREDIT UNION LEAGUE (“League”), has been proposed by the League Board of Directors, in accordance with Article X, Section 5 of the League Bylaws. The proposed Model Chapter Bylaws amendment (“Bylaw Amendment”) should be considered and acted upon by the Delegates of each respective Chapter at the earliest practicable time (“Chapter Delegates Meeting”). Delegates may vote on the Bylaw Amendment in person or by mail ballot, in accordance with the terms of the Model Chapter Bylaws.

The purpose of the Bylaw Amendment is to amend the Model Chapter Bylaws to (i) update the Model Chapter Bylaws to delete obsolete terms and provisions; and (ii) provide a uniform and consistent set of chapter corporate governance standards to enable the Chapters to comply with applicable provisions of the League Bylaws.

The following information is included in this Report, to assist in your review of the Bylaw Amendment:

CONTENTS

I.	Summary of Bylaw Amendment	1
II.	League Board of Directors Recommendation.....	3
III.	Voting Procedure for Bylaw Amendment	3
IV.	Full Text of the Bylaw Amendment	5

Respectfully submitted,

ILLINOIS CREDIT UNION LEAGUE

Date: June 15, 2021

By: _____
Tim O'Donnell, Chairman

ILLINOIS CREDIT UNION LEAGUE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Illinois Credit Union League (“League”) has reviewed the Bylaw Amendment that has been proposed for consideration at Chapter Delegates Meetings throughout the state. This Report sets forth a summary of the Bylaw Amendment and the written recommendation of the League Board of Directors to the Chapter Delegates at those meetings.

I. Summary of Bylaw Amendment

The Model Chapter Bylaws are intended to address corporate governance of the Chapters of the League. The following information provides an overview of the changes to be effected by the proposal.

A. Background.

Chapter Corporate Governance Performance Standards.¹ Under the Chapter Constitution and Model Chapter Bylaws approved by the Board of Directors of the Illinois Credit Union League (“League”) and pursuant to applicable tax law and the League’s Bylaws, the Chapters are part of the League. The Chapter structure exists to support the League, which in turn focuses its attention on serving its affiliated credit unions in the various Chapters.²

The Model Chapter Bylaws provide direction to League-affiliated credit unions on the management and direction of Chapter affairs. While the League maintains a flexible approach in granting the Chapters latitude in running their own affairs, it is important that activities relating to basic organizational activity not run afoul of applicable legal standards. For consistency in interpretation and operation, the following list summarizes fundamental corporate governance standards applicable to all Chapters, as embedded in the Model Chapter Bylaws.³

- 1. Non-Affiliate Credit Union Participation in Chapter Activities:** A credit union that is not affiliated with the League but within the geographical area of the Chapter may affiliate with the Chapter as an associate member only: (i) upon majority vote of the active member credit union delegates at any regular or special Chapter meeting, and (ii) for a period not exceeding one (1) year, without affiliating with the League as an active member. (Model Chapter Bylaws. Article IV, Section B – Membership)

¹ Adopted and approved by the Board of Directors of the Illinois Credit Union League on March 26, 2004.

² Article X, Section 4 of the League Bylaws provides in pertinent part: “The purposes of the Chapters shall be ... to promote League membership, the League mission statement and organizational strategies and the products, services and programs of the League”

³ Article X, Section 5 of the League Bylaws requires that: “Each Chapter shall operate within a set of bylaws adopted by its members. Such bylaws shall be consistent with the Bylaws of the Illinois Credit Union League.”

2. **Qualifications to Serve on the Chapter Board:** To serve on the Chapter Board, a person must be a: (i) member of an active member credit union (i.e., affiliated and in good standing with the League - all League and Chapter dues paid in full), and (ii) director, committee member or employee of an active member credit union. (Model Chapter Bylaws. Article VII, Section 1 – Chapter Board and Its Duties)

3. **Qualifications to be Elected or Appointed as an Officer or Representative of the Chapter:** To serve as an officer or representative of the Chapter, a person must be a: (i) member of an active member credit union (i.e., affiliated and in good standing with the League - all League and Chapter dues paid in full), and (ii) director, committee member or employee of an active member credit union. (Model Chapter Bylaws. Article VIII, Sections 1 and 8 – Officers and Their Duties; Representatives)⁴

4. **Oath:** Qualification to serve on the Chapter Board includes recitation of the oath prescribed in the Model Chapter Bylaws, which includes reference to “loyal support ... to the Illinois Credit Union League.” (Model Chapter Bylaws. Article VII, Section 7 – Chapter Board and Its Duties)

This oath of office must be administered to all Chapter directors, officers and representatives annually.

5. **Annual Meetings:** A Chapter must hold an annual meeting by March 1 of each year. (Model Chapter Bylaws. Article V, Section 1 - Meetings)

6. **League Chapter Grant:** The annual League grant to each Chapter is contingent upon the Chapter’s adherence to the performance standards identified herein and all criteria in the League Bylaws and League Model Chapter Bylaws. Disbursement of the Chapter grants to eligible Chapters shall be made as soon as practicable after the March 1 credit union membership suspension date, established pursuant to Article IV, Section 4 of the League Bylaws.⁵

⁴ Standards 3 and 4 cumulatively mean that persons from non-affiliated credit unions shall not hold any of the following Chapter positions:

- Chapter Board Member
- Chapter Officer
- Legislative Forum Representative
- IYIC Representative
- Education Liaison
- ICU Foundation Representative
- Web Master

⁵ Disbursement after the March 1 membership suspension date enables League management to confirm whether the Chapter positions described herein are filled by eligible persons, and whether the other time sensitive criteria have been met.

B. Analysis of Proposed 2021 Bylaw Amendment.

1. The Bylaw Amendment makes minor technical changes to help the League Chapters address corporate governance matters more efficiently. Those changes include (i) updating the Model Chapter Bylaws to delete obsolete terms and provisions; and (ii) provide a uniform and consistent set of chapter corporate governance standards to enable the Chapters to comply with applicable provisions of the League Bylaws. Specifically, the Bylaw Amendment proposes to amend the Model Chapter Bylaws to make the changes described in the Section-by-Section Analysis below.
2. Section-by-Section Analysis of Proposed 2021 Bylaw Amendment:

Summary of Proposed 2021 Bylaw Amendment

Page	Article/Section	Purpose of Amendment
Page 6	Article I – Name and Location	Deletes need to specify geographic description within Model Chapter Bylaws by referencing the description is in the League’s corporate records.
Page 7	Article III - Objectives Section A	Clarifies that the area served by the Chapter is the geographic area identified in Article I.
Page 8	Article IV – Membership Section 3	Clarifies credit unions with a League dues waiver are credit unions in good standing with the League.
Page 9	Article V – Meetings Section 1	Clarifies the annual meeting notice shall be sent to all Chapter members.
Page 10	Article V - Meetings Section 7 and Section 8	For the agendas of the organizational meetings and regular meetings of the Chapter Board updates the representatives from whom the Chapter Board receives reports.
Page 11	Article VI – Delegates and their Duties Section 1 and Section 3	Makes minor grammatical corrections and also corrects a cross-section citation.
Page 11	Article VII – Chapter Board and Its Duties Section 1	Prescribes a Chapter Board with a variable range of up to five directors, as established by the Chapter Board.
Page 12 and 14	Article VIII – Officers and Their Duties, Representatives Section 1 and Section 8	Corrects a cross-section citation and updates the list of representatives elected or appointed from and by the Chapter Board.
Page 14	Article IX – Committees and Their Duties Section 2	Deletes reference to League Departments that receive Chapter financial reports and simply provides that the reports will be furnished to the League.
Page 15	Article XI – Finances Section 1 and Section 2	Clarifies it is the Chapter Board that is responsible for the annual report of expenditures; and clarifies the League purchases Chapter bond coverage from the CUNA Mutual Group.
Page 16 and 17	Article XIII – Amendments Section 1 and Section 2	Adds electronic voting as a method by which Chapter delegates may vote on bylaw amendments and other matters at the annual and any regular or special delegates’ meetings.

II. League Board of Directors Recommendation

For the reasons set forth above, the League Board of Directors recommends that the Delegates of each Chapter vote YES on the Bylaw Amendment.

III. Voting Procedure for Bylaw Amendment

A. Balloting Process for Bylaw Amendment.

1. **General.** The Model Chapter Bylaws provide that delegates who are present at regular meetings may vote on proposed bylaw amendments. In addition, member credit unions may request to receive an official mail ballot and mail the vote of their delegate to the designated Teller, in lieu of having their delegate vote on the proposal at the regular meeting.
2. **Voting by Secret Mail Ballot.**
 - (a) A paper copy of the Official Mail Ballot and Board Report can be requested from the Chapter Secretary. The Chapter should contact its League Regional Director to assist in responding to the request.
 - (b) The Official Mail Ballot must be used by the credit union delegate, if he or she elects to vote by mail rather than being present at the regular meeting.
 - (c) Delegates must vote by marking the Official Ballot with an , or . After voting, the Ballot should be placed in the postage prepaid and pre-addressed mailing envelope and returned to the Chapter Secretary.
 - (d) **The deadline for mail ballot votes to be received by the Chapter Secretary as the Teller is 4:00 p.m. of the date that is two (2) days prior to the Chapter regular meeting at which the Bylaw Amendment will be considered and acted upon. The ballot must be mailed in the postage-prepaid and pre-addressed return mailing envelope to the Chapter Secretary.**
 - (e) In the event a mail ballot is lost or misplaced, a duplicate mail ballot may be requested from the Chapter Secretary. In the event two ballots are submitted from the same credit union, both will be disqualified (i.e., only one vote per affiliated credit union--as described above; if the credit union delegate votes by mail ballot, he or she may not vote on the Bylaw Amendment at the Chapter regular meeting).

B. **Disqualification of Ballots.** Disqualifications that preclude a ballot from being counted by the Teller include the following:

1. The ballot is a duplicate or photocopy of an official ballot.
2. More than one ballot is received from a credit union.

3. The ballot is delivered to anyone other than the designated Teller (do not send the mail ballot to the League).
 4. The ballot contains no vote on the Bylaw Amendment or indicates a vote with anything other than an , or .
 5. The ballot has been damaged to the extent the intentions of the credit union are not discernible.
 6. If a mail ballot, the ballot contains a blank, incomplete or unsigned Identification Form (or is signed by someone other than the credit union delegate).
 7. If a mail ballot, the ballot is received by the Teller after 4:00 p.m. on the deadline date.
 8. The ballot is cast by a credit union not affiliated with the Illinois Credit Union League as a regular voting member in good standing.
- C. **Teller.** The Chapter Secretary will serve as the Teller of Election and supervise the receipt and counting of all ballots. The Secretary will preserve the confidentiality of each individual secret mail ballot.
- D. **Results of Vote.** Votes will be tallied by the Teller and the results declared by the Chapter Chairman, prior to the close of the regular meeting or any postponement thereof. The results reported by the Teller will be final and no re-counts will be conducted.

IV. **Full Text of the Bylaw Amendment**

The full text of the Bylaw Amendment begins on the next page. Provisions of the Bylaws that would be added by adoption of the Bylaw Amendment are indicated by underlining and provisions that would be deleted are indicated by means of ~~strikeout~~ type. The underlining and strikeout markings are intended to facilitate recognition of the proposed amendments in the text of the existing Bylaws.

**ILLINOIS CREDIT UNION LEAGUE
AMENDED AND RESTATED
MODEL CHAPTER BYLAWS**

**Central Illinois Chapter of Credit Unions
of the
Illinois Credit Union League
(Revised 09/10/2021)**

Constitution

The credit union movement belongs to the credit unions, which are motivated by the same principles and perform the same service under whichever law they may be organized. To promote the credit union movement and to insure efficient operation, credit unions are united through the Illinois Credit Union League and CUNA Incorporated. This Chapter, as part of the Illinois Credit Union League, is an integral part of the credit union movement as so organized. Recognizing the value of the cooperative effort through the interchange of ideas and of social contact, this Chapter is established to make possible more efficient coordination of these elements so fundamental in the credit union movement. **Bylaws**

Article I. Name and Location

The name of this Chapter of the Illinois Credit Union League shall be: Central Illinois Chapter of Credit Unions. Its boundaries as approved by the board of directors of the Illinois Credit Union League are described in the corporate records of the Illinois Credit Union League.

Article II. Government

This Chapter is organized in conformity with Article X of the Illinois Credit Union League Bylaws, and shall be governed by active member credit union delegates and Chapter officers as therein provided, and in accordance with its own Bylaws as hereinafter set forth.

Article III. Objectives

The objectives of this Chapter shall be:

- A. To promote interest and cooperation between credit unions and credit union members ~~within this area.~~ within the geographical area as identified in Article I.
- B. To assist in the development and education of credit union directors, employees and committee members.
- C. To assist the Illinois Credit Union League in furthering the development and organization of additional credit unions.
- D. To promote membership in the Illinois Credit Union League for the furthering and protection of the credit union movement in CUNA Incorporated.
- E. To provide meetings of the credit unions in this area for the purpose of interchanging ideas and information of mutual interest.
- F. To promote the observance of International Credit Union Day on the third Thursday of October each year, as a day of thanksgiving for the credit union privilege, in order to bring about a better understanding of credit unions and the important services they are rendering.
- G. To assist the Illinois Credit Union League in promoting favorable legislation for furthering the credit union movement in Illinois and throughout the United States.

Article IV. Membership

Section 1. Eligibility

Any credit union within the geographical area defined in Article I of these bylaws, whether organized under state or federal law, is eligible for membership in this Chapter. Any credit union legally assigned to another Chapter which requests transfer to this Chapter, and which has been authorized to transfer by its home Chapter, may be accepted as a member of this Chapter by a majority vote of delegates at any regular or special meetings. Such transfers must be approved by the board of directors of the Illinois Credit Union League. Any individual as defined in Section 2 of this Article is also eligible for Chapter membership.

Section 2. Classes of membership

There shall be three classes of members whose rights and privileges, as well as their qualifications to membership, are given in the following paragraphs.

A. Active members

1. Active regular members—all credit unions that are within the geographical area defined in Article I and which are affiliated and in good standing with the Illinois Credit Union League shall be active members in this Chapter with full voting powers; provided they are in good standing with the Chapter as defined in Article IV, Section 3. Such voting powers shall be vested in one representative from each such credit union. Such representatives shall be known as delegates to the Chapter.
2. Active branch members—all credit union branch offices that are within the geographical area defined in Article I, and whose home offices are affiliated and in good standing with the Illinois Credit Union League or the league of the state in which such home office is located, may be affiliated with the Chapter as active branch members with the same full voting powers granted active regular members, provided they are in good standing with the Chapter as defined in Article IV, Section 3; and further provided that active branch members shall not be permitted to vote on issues involving the Illinois Credit Union League.

B. Associate members—credit unions that are **not affiliated** with the Illinois Credit Union League but are within the geographical area defined in Article I may be affiliated with this Chapter as associate members for a period of one (1) year, by a majority vote of delegates at any regular or special meeting. An associate member shall have only the right of participation in discussion without power to vote. Membership in this Chapter shall terminate at the expiration of the one (1) year period, unless prior thereto the associate member becomes an active member by affiliating with the Illinois Credit Union League.

C. Honorary members—individuals rendering meritorious service to the credit union movement, deemed worthy of honorary recognition, may from time to time be admitted as Chapter members by a majority vote of delegates at any regular or special meeting but shall have only the right of participation in discussion without power to vote.

Section 3. Good standing

In order to be deemed a Chapter member in good standing, a credit union must be current in its payment of all Chapter and Illinois Credit Union League dues which have been assessed. Failure to pay Chapter dues shall in no way affect the determination of whether a credit union is a member in good standing of the Illinois Credit Union League. Credit Unions that have been granted an Illinois Credit Union League dues waiver by the Illinois Credit Union League Board of Directors will be considered to be a credit union in good standing of the Illinois Credit Union League.

Article V. Meetings

Section 1. Annual meetings

The annual meeting of the Chapter shall be held prior to March 1 of each year. Notice of such meetings shall be sent by the secretary of the Chapter Board to all Chapter members at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meetings.

Section 2. Regular meetings

The Chapter Board shall determine the number and schedule of regular meetings.

Section 3. Special meetings

Special meetings may be called by the chairman of the Chapter Board or by ten percent (10%) of the active member credit union delegates. Notices of such meetings are to be given by the secretary to all members, stating the purpose, time and place of the meetings, at least seven (7) days prior to the meetings.

Section 4. Quorum and vote

Ten percent (10%) of delegates shall constitute a quorum at annual, regular, and special meetings. Unless otherwise provided in these bylaws, the vote of a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the action of the delegates.

Section 5. International Credit Union Day meetings

This Chapter shall sponsor and promote an International Credit Union Day meeting, to be held during the month of October each year. This meeting may replace the regular monthly meeting for October each year.

Section 6. Order of business—annual meetings

The suggested order of business for annual meetings of the Chapter is as follows:

- A. call to order
- B. determination of quorum
- C. minutes of last annual meeting
- D. report of the chairman
- E. report of the treasurer
- F. report of the standing and special committees
- G. old business
- H. new business
 1. election of Chapter Board
 2. presentation of budget
 3. adoption of dues schedule
- I. adjournment

Section 7. Order of business—organizational meetings

The suggested order of business for organizational meetings of the Chapter Board is as follows:

- A. call to order
- B. determination of quorum
- C. election of officers
 - 1. chairman
 - 2. vice chairmen
 - 3. secretary
 - 4. treasurer
- D. appointment of representatives
 - 1. legislative forum (LFR)
 - ~~2. ICARE~~
 - ~~2.3. Young Professionals (YP) Illinois Youth Involvement Council (IYIC)~~
 - ~~3.4. education liaison~~
 - ~~4.5. Illinois Credit Union Foundation~~
 - ~~5.6. Webmaster~~
- E. adjournment

Section 8. Order of business—regular meetings

The suggested order of business for regular meetings of the Chapter is as follows:

- A. call to order
- B. determination of quorum
- C. approval of minutes
- D. introduction of new members and guests
- E. reports
 - 1. chairman
 - 2. treasurer
 - 3. representatives
 - a. legislative forum (LFR)
 - b. ~~ICARE~~
 - ~~b.e. Young Professional (YP) Illinois Youth Involvement Council (IYIC)~~
 - ~~c.d. education liaison~~
 - ~~d.e. Illinois Credit Union Foundation~~
 - 4. ~~CUNA Mutual representative~~
 - ~~4.5. League director~~
 - ~~5.6. ICUL Regional Manager~~
- F. unfinished business
- G. new business
- H. program
- I. discussion
- J. adjournment

Article VI. Delegates and Their Duties

Section 1. Selection of delegates

Each active member credit union in good standing shall select one representative from ~~its~~^{the} credit union to serve as ~~its~~^{the} delegate to this Chapter. Each credit union in the Chapter will report the name of ~~its~~^{the} delegate to the Chapter secretary by March 1 each year.

Section 2. Duties

- A. At each annual meeting the delegates shall elect a Chapter Board as prescribed by Articles VII and XII of the bylaws to serve until the next annual meeting.
- B. At any regular or special meeting, the delegates shall vote on all motions presented to the membership.

Section 3. Oath

The delegates shall take an oath as set forth in Article VII, Section ~~7~~⁴ of these Bylaws.

Section 4. Alternate delegate

An alternate delegate may be selected by each active member credit union to act in the absence of the delegate. The credit union will report the name of its alternate delegate to the Chapter secretary by March 1st each year.

Article VII. Chapter Board and Its Duties

Section 1. Qualifications

The Chapter Board of Directors shall consist of a variable range of up to five Directors ~~===== (at least five) members~~, each of whom shall be a member and a director, committee member or employee of an active member credit union in this Chapter. The Chapter Board shall establish the number of Directors, which may be fixed or changed from time to time within the range by the Chapter Board without further amendment to the Bylaws.

Section 2. Ex-officio members

The immediate past chairman of the Chapter and the ICUL Regional Director shall be ex-officio members of the Chapter Board.

Section 3. Term of office

The term of office shall be for a period of one (1) year and such term shall begin on March 1 each year.

Section 4. Duties

The Chapter Board shall have the general management and control of the affairs, funds and records of this chapter and perform such other duties prescribed in these bylaws.

Section 5. Meetings

- A. The Chapter Board shall meet within sixty (60) days of the annual meeting, to elect from its own number a chairman, treasurer, secretary and such other officers and committees as the Chapter Board shall from time to time determine. The secretary shall report the results of the election to the Illinois Credit Union League Member Services Department upon a form provided for that purpose.
- B. The Chapter Board shall meet upon request of the chairman, or upon the request of any three (3) members of the Chapter Board. Due notice of such meetings must be given by the secretary to every member of the board.

Section 6. Quorum and Vote

A majority of the Chapter Board shall constitute a quorum. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these bylaws, the vote of a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the action of the Chapter Board.

Section 7. Oath

To qualify as a member of the Chapter Board of this chapter, the Chapter Board member shall be required to take the following oath:

As a member of the Chapter Board (officer, delegate) of this chapter for the ensuing year, I will perform my duties in accordance with its bylaws, and at all times give my loyal support to the credit union movement and Illinois Credit Union League, to be accomplished by my faithful conduct in accordance with the law and the highest credit union operating principles.

Section 8. Vacancy

Any vacancy on the Chapter Board because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by vote of a majority of the Chapter Board then holding office.

Article VIII. Officers and Their Duties; Representatives

Section 1. Election

The officers of this Chapter shall be elected from and by the Chapter Board, and shall serve one year terms. The officers shall take an oath as set forth in Article VII, Section 47 of these bylaws. Nomination for and election of each office shall be completed before proceeding to the next office. Where only one person has been placed in nomination for an office, the election for the office may proceed by unanimous consent.

Section 2. Officers

The officers of this Chapter shall consist of a chairman, secretary and treasurer. A vice chairman may also be elected. No officer shall serve more than _____ () consecutive terms in the same office. An officer may also serve as a representative of the Chapter.

Section 3. Chairman

The chairman shall preside over all meetings and shall, in the way and manner outlined by the Chapter Board, manage the affairs of this Chapter and shall appoint all committees. The chairman shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.

Section 4. Vice chairman

The vice chairman shall, in the event of the absence or disability of the chairman, preside over all meetings, perform the duties of the chairman and perform such other duties as the Chapter Board may assign from time to time.

Section 5. Secretary

The secretary shall keep correct records of all meetings of this Chapter, and shall give notices of all meetings to the members in the manner prescribed by the Bylaws and shall perform all other duties incident to this office.

Section 6. Treasurer

The treasurer shall be the custodian of Chapter funds; shall keep a set of books containing in detail the financial transactions of the Chapter; shall make all collections and disbursements determined by the Chapter Board and report relative thereto at each meeting of the Chapter. The treasurer shall also furnish the Illinois Credit Union League by March 15 of each year, all financial information requested on forms supplied by the Illinois Credit Union League, so that all Chapter group exemption 990 tax returns may be filed on a timely basis.

Section 7. Vacancy in office

A vacancy in any office, committee or position described in these bylaws because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by vote of a majority of the Chapter Board then holding office.

Section 8. Representatives

- A. The representatives shall be elected or appointed from and by the Chapter Board to serve in the following positions:
1. legislative forum (LFR)
 - ~~2.~~ ~~ICARE~~
 - ~~2.3.~~ ~~Young Professionals (YP) Illinois Youth Involvement Council (IYIC)~~
 - ~~3.~~~~4.~~ education liaison
 - ~~4.~~~~5.~~ Illinois Credit Union Foundation
 - ~~6.~~~~5.~~ Webmaster
- B. Each representative shall be a member and a director, committee member or employee of an active member credit union in this Chapter.
- C. Duties and responsibilities of the representatives shall be established, maintained and amended from time to time as necessary, by the Chapter Board, in consultation with management and staff of the Illinois Credit Union League. A representative may also serve as an officer of the Chapter.

Article IX. Committees and Their Duties

Section 1. Nominating and Bylaws Committee

- A. Members—the committee chairman and members shall be appointed by the Chapter Board chairman from among the delegates.
- B. Duties—to present a slate of candidates to be elected to the Chapter Board at the annual meeting each year. To review and make recommendations for changes to the bylaws of this Chapter, with such recommendations to be presented to the Chapter delegates as provided under Article XIII of these Bylaws.

Section 2. Audit Committee

- A. Members—the committee chairman and members shall be appointed by the Chapter Board chairman from among the delegates other than the treasurer, subject to ratification by the Chapter Board.
- B. Duties—to examine the financial records of the Chapter and make a report to the membership at the annual meeting. A copy of such report shall be furnished to the Illinois Credit Union League, ~~Regional Management department.~~

Section 3. Other committees

Other committees and their respective chairmen and members shall be appointed at the discretion of the Chapter Board chairman, subject to ratification by the Chapter Board.

Article X. Removal

Section 1.

Any officer, member of any committee, or Chapter representative representing this Chapter shall be subject to removal only after a proper hearing has been provided at a regular or special meeting of the Chapter, for which proper notice has been given to all member credit unions at least thirty (30) days prior to such hearing.

Section 2.

A vote shall be taken for such removal not sooner than the next regular meeting of the Chapter. A three-fourths ($\frac{3}{4}$) majority vote of the delegates voting shall be necessary for such removal.

Article XI. Finances

Section 1. Method

The method of financing this Chapter, including without limitation the assessment of dues, shall be based upon recommendations made by the Chapter Board to be submitted at the annual meeting of the Chapter. Such method shall be adopted as approved or revised by the delegates present at the annual meeting. It shall be the duty of the Chapter Board to follow the method of financing prescribed at the annual meeting. In addition, the Chapter Board~~board of governors~~ shall be responsible for the annual report as to expenditures for each year.

Section 2. Safeguarding funds

The funds of the Chapter shall be safeguarded in the way and manner determined by the Chapter Board. Coverage is provided to the Chapter under the terms of the bond ~~between~~purchased by the Illinois Credit Union League ~~and from~~ CUNA Mutual Group.

Section 3. Disbursements

All disbursements of monies are to be made in accordance with the policy and procedure established by the Chapter Board, which policy shall specify that any check or share draft must be signed by any one (1) of the following three officers: chairman, treasurer or secretary.

Article XII. Election Procedure

Section 1. Nominating and Bylaws Committee

At least 30 days prior to each annual meeting, the chairman of the Chapter Board shall appoint the Nominating and Bylaws Committee of not fewer than three (3) persons from among the delegates. It shall be the duty of such committee to nominate at least one (1) eligible candidate for each vacancy, for which elections are held.

Section 2. Procedure

After the nomination of the Nominating and Bylaws Committee have been placed before the delegates, the chairman of the Chapter Board shall call for other nomination, from the floor. Nominations shall then be closed; tellers shall be appointed by the chairman of the Board; ballots shall be distributed; the vote shall be taken and tallied by the tellers; and the results shall be announced. All elections shall be determined by plurality vote and shall be by secret ballot, except where there is only one (1) nominee for each office, in which case the election may proceed by unanimous consent.

Article XIII. Amendments

Section 1.

This constitution and these Bylaws may be amended at the annual meeting or any regular or special meeting by a three-fourths (3/4) vote of the delegates present or voting on the proposed bylaw amendment by mail or ~~fax~~ electronic ballot, if notice of the proposed amendment has been given to every active member credit union in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting such amendment is to be acted upon.

Section 2.

Delegates may vote on proposed bylaw amendments and other matters placed on the agenda of the annual meeting, or a regular or special meeting, in person or by means of secret mail or ~~fax~~ electronic ballot.

- A. All active member credit unions shall receive an official mail ballot or electronic ballot or both. Each active member credit union may elect to mail or ~~fax~~ electronically submit the vote of its delegate to the Tellers of Election appointed by the Chapter Board, in lieu of having its delegate vote on the proposal in person at the annual, regular or special meeting. The Tellers of Election shall deliver all such mail and ~~fax~~ electronic ballots to the annual, regular or special meeting, to be included in the count by the Tellers of Election at the ~~regular~~ meeting.
- B. The color of ballots distributed to delegates at the annual, regular or special meeting shall be distinct from the color of mail and fax ballots, which shall be identified as ~~mail and fax ballots and printed on white paper.~~
- C. In the event of re-balloting conducted at the annual, regular or special meeting due to a tie vote, mail and ~~fax~~ electronic ballots shall be counted in each such subsequent balloting.
- ~~D. Only delegates present at the regular meeting shall have an opportunity to vote on other business brought to a vote of the delegates at the regular meeting.~~

DE. The Chapter Board may establish such additional rules and procedures, from time to time, as it deems necessary or appropriate to conduct the mail and ~~for~~ electronic balloting process set forth herein, consistent with any requirements contained in these bylaws.

Article XIV. Parliamentary Authority

Section 1.

In all matters not covered by the Bylaws of this Chapter, Robert's rules of order, revised, shall apply.

Section 2.

A parliamentarian may be appointed by the Chapter Board chairman.

* * *

Certificate of Resolution

The undersigned, being the duly elected and qualified Secretary and the keeper of the records of the Central Illinois Chapter of Credit Unions of the Illinois Credit Union League, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation ("League"), hereby certifies that on September 10, 2021 at a duly called meeting of the active member credit unions of said Chapter at which a quorum was at all times present, said Chapter credit unions, through their duly appointed delegates, approved a motion adopting the *Amended and Restated Model Chapter Bylaws*; and that such motion is now in full force and effect and is not in contravention of, or in conflict with, the bylaws or articles of incorporation of the League.

Date: 11-16-21

CENTRAL ILLINOIS CHAPTER OF CREDIT UNIONS

By: Charla Buchanan

Type Name: Charla Buchanan
Chapter Secretary